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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CAUFORNIA 

Federal Trade Commission, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

Loss Mitigation Services, Inc. 

and 

~ynergy Financial Mana.gement 
Co~oration, 

http:and-DirectLender.com
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Mario n Anthony (a.k.a. "Ton y") Perry, �~� 

Defendants. 
---------------------------) 

I 

Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Comm i s s i o n ("FTC"), for its Comp lain t alleges: 

1. The FTC brings this actio n under Sectio n 13(b) 
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business in this district and throughout the United States. From at least 17 
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9. Defendant Marion Anthony (a.k.a. "Tony") Perry is or has served as 

President and Acting Chief Operations Officer of LMS. At all times material to 

this Complaint, acting alone or in concert with others, he has formulated, directed, 

controlled, or had authority to control, or participated in the acts and practices of 

Defendants set forth in this Complaint. Defendant Tony Perry resides in this 

district and in connection with the matters alleged herein, transacts or has 

transacted business in this district. 

10. From at least February 2008 through at least May 2008, Synergy and 

LMS operated as a common enterprise while engaging in the deceptive acts and 

practices alleged below. During this time, Synergy and LMS shared office space 

and employees, were commonly controlled, and participated in a common scheme 

to deceive consumers. Because Synergy and LMS operated as a common 

enterprise, each of them is jointly and severally liable for the acts and practices 

alleged below beginning no later than February 2008 and ending no earlier than 

May 2008. Individual defendants Dean Shafer, Bernadette Perry, and Tony Perry 

formulated, directed, controlled, had the authority to control, or participated in the 

acts and practices of the common enterprise. 

COMMERCE 

11. At all times relevant to this complaint, Defendants have maintained a 

substantial course of trade in or affecting commerce, as "commerce" is defined in 

Section 4 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 44. 

AVAILABILITY OF FREE LOAN andODIFh3db42j
0.00993 Tc 3.872e30.0053 T7 Tc 3.06,.Span <<3 Tm
.3s.01et0 0 13.2 236.14 258.13iIj
0.017 
1 9 0 . 0 3 6 5  1 3  T m 
 ( o f i n s t i t u  0  T d 
 ( t h e  ) 3 d 
 ( h a v e j 
 - 0 . 0 1 1  f r e 5 5  0  T d 
 ( 1 9 0 . 0 3 6 ( b e l 8 2 0 1 T c  1 3 9 4 8 . 1 3  T o g r a m s  T d 
 ( t h i s  ) T j 
 0 ) T 2 0 . 0 1 0 7  T c 9 2  0  T d 
 ( c 2 2 . 0 a i n t ,  2 1 7  T c  2 . 5 s s i s  0  T d 
 ( t i m i c i p a t T j 
 - l e d ,  ) T j 3 . 5 a n c . 7 7 l . 2 1 6  - 1 . 6 9 0 8 
 ( D e a n 7 e .  ) T j 
 E M d i s  r e s s 0  T d 
 ( t h e  
 ( t h a n  4 . 3 T 1 _ 2  1  T f h o m e o w n  r n e d  ) T j 
 0 8 S p a n  3  2 
 / P  < < / M b . 2 1 6  - 1 . 6 9 2 e v a n t  ) T 2 l e d ,  ) T j o 0 3  r  4 . 8 8 1  0  T d ) T j 
 0 . . 0 1 2 
 / P  < < / M 2 1 1 m ) T j 
 0 . 0 3 3 5  T c  1 8 0 . 5 2 . 0 5  3 7 0 2 1 1  0  T d 
 ( A 2 6 . 1 5 6  0  . 7 1 7  o u r s e  ,  ) T j o p p o r t u n ( t o  ) T j 
 T d 
 1 6 3 
 - 0 . 0 0 4 1 6  T c  1 . 7 9 2  0  T d 
 ( c 2 t ,  ) T j 
 -  ) T j 
 0 . 0 2 0 m o d i f o  



5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

1 

2 

.3 

4 

6 

7 

8 

9 

11 

12 

13 

14 

16 

17 

18 

19 

21 

22 

23 

24 

26 

27 

28 

numerous m,\jor mortgage lenders and servicers, non-profit and community-based 

organizations, the federal government, and the news media have helped publicize 

the availability of these free mortgage loan modification programs. ILenders often 

notify consumers of the availability of these programs, or of consumers' eligibility, 

through their "loss mitigation" departments. Proposed defendants divert 

consumers from these free programs and induce them to spend thousands of dollars 

on their purported "Loss Mitigation Services." 

DEFENDANTS' BUSINESS PRACTICES 

13. Since at least late 2007, Defendants have engaged in a course of 

conduct to advertise, market, otTer to sell, and sell to homeowners purported 

mortgage loan modification and foreclosure relief services. 

14. Defendants typically have charged homeowners between $2,500 and 

$5,500 in up-front fees and have purported that they will modify homeowners' 

mortgages in all or virtually all cases. Defendants also have represented that they 

can prevent foreclosure. 

15. Defendants have marketed their services to homeowners who are in 

financial distress, delinquent on their mortgage loans, or in danger of losing their 

homes to foreclosure. 

16. Defendants' primary means of making initial contact with 

homeowners has been to send direct mail solicitations targeted to homeowners who 

may be in financial distress, including but not limited to those with mortgage loans 

scheduled to reset to higher payment levels, those who are late o.n their payments, 

and those who have received notices of default. Defendants also have marketed to 

such homeowners using telemarketers, email, and the internet. 

17. Defendants Synergy and LMS have marketed mortgage loan 

modification and foreclosure relief services both individually and together. 

Beginning in or about late 2007, Defendant Synergy, operating through the 

fictitious business name Direct Lender, engaged in a course of conduct to 

5 �
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advertise, 
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typically would appear, only the generic name "Loss Mitigation Services." 

Immediately below 24 belowTc 1.579 0 Td
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-0.se.6piciL8iy 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

27. The letter has instructed homeowners to call a toll-free number, and 

that "[t]his offer is good until" a date typically approximately three weeks after the 

date of the letter, and that "[n]o other notices will be issued and nG 

representatives will call you." (Emphasis in original.) 

28. The letter has fm1her represented that "[o]ur loan modification team 

has searched existing records to make you this comparison offer as it relates to 

your existing loan." The letter has advised consumers that "[t]his offer to negotiate 

your mortgage could save you thousands of dollars," and that "[a] Senior l,oan 

Modification Specialist is waiting to assist you." (Emphasis originaL) 

29. At the bottom of the page, in a large but generic font, Defendants 

again have printed their name, "Loss Mitigation Services." Below that, in a font 

no larger than 8-point, and smaller than any other text in the letter, Defendants 

have included several disclaimers, stating, "Loss Mitigation Services, Inc. is a 

California Corporation. This infOlmation was ii 0 tnhe publont, 
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less of a modification or short sale than you could really get" The website further 

has claimed that "[m]any times we can substantially improve your loan 

modification or short sale. We know how to communicate with your lender." 

Inbollnd Telemarketing Sales 
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"[W]e have a team of lawyers here and we have over 300 employees 

that do this. I mean, it's a major, major operation here." 

"[E]ach modification is approximately 100 man-hours.? 

"It is our experience that there is 
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Your loan modification was approved. I have attached 

the payment form to process the fee for your loan 

modification. The fee for your loan modification is 
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46, In other instances, Defendants have told consumers that they would 

not charge them a fee until their loan modification was complete. However, after 

receiving consumers' payment information, Defendants nevertheless have 

processed payment before performing the promised services. 

47. In numerous instances, Defendants have told homeowners that if they 

are not satisfied with Defendants' service they are entitled to a full refund of the 

fees paid. 

48. In numerous instances, Defendants have encouraged consumers to 

stop paying their mortgages while their loan modification was being processed, 

49. In numerous they 
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5.3. In fact, TNLMA is not an independent organization, but is 

substantially under the control and direction of Defendants LMS and Synergy. The 

organization is incorporated at the same address as LMS; its bank account was 

opened by the president of LMS; its president is Aaron Cuha, founder of Direct 

Lender; and its URL is registered to Synergy Capital Management Corporation, an 

apparent affiliate of Defendant Synergy, listing Mr. Cuha as the administrative 

contact. 

54. Among other things, TNLMA has published a "consumer alert" 

advising that "FREE Loan Modifications May Be Hazardous To Your Mortgage," 

and has advised consumers in its "Education Center" to disregard Better Business 

Bureau ratings of mortgage loan modification companies. 

55. Also as a tactic to gain consumers' confidence, Defendants have 

provided homeowners with a "Credibility & Legitimacy Report" for LMS. The 

report includes three sections: "The Facts About the Better Business Bureau 

(BBB)"; a "Corporate Bio"; and "Real Life Testimonials." The report includes a 

number of misrepresentations about LMS's rating with the BBB and its corporate 

good standing, as well as purported consumer endorsements from consumers 

whose full identities are not provided. 

56. In addition, in numerous instances, LMS has described its services as 

"attorney assisted." However, LMS has refused to provide consumers with the 

identity, contact information or work product of the attorney who purportedly is 

working on their account. 

Consumer Harm 

57. In numerous instances, after homeowners have paid Defendants' fee, 

Defendants have failed to answer or return homeowners' telephone calls or provide 

updates about the status of Defendants' purported communications with the 

homeowners' lenders or servicers. Homeowners who have called Defendants often 

are transferred from one "mitigator" to another. In many instances, Defendants 

13 �
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have misrepresented that negotiations were underway, although Defendants had 

not yet contacted the lender or had only left messages or had non;substantive 

contacts. In other instances, Defendants have misrepresented that the lender was 

the cause for delay when, in reality, Defendants have made little, if any, effort to 

contact the lender. In other instances, Defendants have misrepresented that the 

process has been delayed because of incomplete information from the homeowner, 

although LMS had made no attempt to obtain the purportedly missing information 

before being reached by the homeowner. In other instances, homeowners who 

have contacted their lenders have been told that the lenders had never heard of 

Defendants or refused to work with third-party negotiators. In other instances, 

homeowners who have contacted their lenders have learned that Defendants sent 

the lenders incomplete information. 

58. In numerous instances, Defendants have failed to obtain mortgage 

loan modifications. Some homeowners who have paid for Defendants' services 

have been able to obtain mortgage loan modifications and avoid foreclosure only 

through their own efforts and not because of any service provided by Defendants. 

59. In numerous instances, Defendants have denied refunds to 

homeowners for In2ac3ea.mj
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67. Therefore, Defendants' representations as set fOlih in Paragraph 65 of 

this Complaint are false and misleading and constitute deceptive acts or practices 

in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C § 45(a). 

Count III 

68. In numerous instances in connection with the advertising, marketing, 

promotion, offering for sale, or sale of mortgage loan modification or foreclosure 

relief services, Defendants have represented directlb3xrlor ented a l e ,  m o r c  1 4 1 
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and redress violations of the FTC Act. The Court, in the exercise of its equitable 

jurisdiction, may award ancillary relief, including rescission or reformation of 

contracts and restitution, the refund of monies paid, and the disgorgement of ill-

gotten monies, to prevent and remedy any violation of any provision of law 

enforced by the FTC. 

PRA YER FOR RELIEF 

Wherefore, Plaintiff Federal Trade Commission, pursuant to Section 13(b) 

of the FTC Act, 15 u.s.c. § 53(b), and the Court's own equitable powers, requests 

that the Court: 

A. Award Plaintiff such preliminary injunctive and ancillary relief as 

may be necessary to avert the likelihood of consumer injury during the pendency 

of this action and to preserve the possibility of effective final relief, including but 

not limited to temporary and preliminary injunctions; 

B. Enter a permanent injunction to prevent future violations of the FTC 

Act by Defendants; 

C. Award such relief as the Court finds necessary to redress injury to 

consumers resulting from Defendants' violations of the FTC Act, including but not 

limited to, rescission or reformation of contracts, restitution, the refund of monies 

paid, and the disgorgement of ill-gotten monies; and 

D. A ward Plaintiff the costs of bringing this action, as well as such other 

and additional relief as the Court may determine to be just and proper. 

17 �
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Dated: Junek,2009 Respectfully submitted, 

Willard K. Tom 
General Counsel 

Mark L. Glassman 
(202) 326-2826 
mglassman@fic.gov

Robert B. Mahini 
(202) 326-2642 
rmaliini@fic.gov

Bevin MUDJhy
(202) 326-2191 
bmurpl1yl@ftc.gov

Federa1 Trade Commission 
600 Pennsylvania Avenue 
Mail Stop NJ-3158 
Washington, DC 20580 
Fax: (202) 326-3768 

John D. Jacobs (Local Counsel) 
California Bar No. 134154 
Federal Trade Commission 
10877 Wilshire Blvdri Ste. 700 
Los �A�n�~�e�l�e�s�,� CA 90v24 
Tel: (310) 824-4343 
Fax: (310) 824-4380 
jjacobs@fic.gov 

Attorneys for Plaintiff FTC 
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